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On November 8, 2001 at appraximately 0005 hours, the Apache Cou nty Sherifi's Office
(ACS0), Special Response Team (SRT), was involved in an "Officer Involved Shooting.”
The suspect, William Milton Cooper, critically wounded an ACSO deputy and was mortally
wounded by another sheriff's deputy.

In the surnmer of 2001, the Chiaf of the Eagar Police Depariment (EPD) contacted the
ACS0 and asked for assistance dewveloping a plan to arrest Cooper, an Eagar, Arizona,
resident. The EPD advised Cooper was wanted on fadera] tax charges from 1998 as well as
felony aggravated assault and felony endangerment charges in Apache County. The felony
charges in Apache County were a result of an incidert that accurred July 11, 2001,

The ACSO contacted the Maricopa County Special Weapons and Tactics (MCSO/SWAT)
and asked for assistance developing a tactical plan to effect Cooper's arrast. The
MCSO/SWAT respanded and developed an arrest plan.

The ACSO/SRT and the MCSO/SWAT initially planned to arrest Cooper on September 11,
2001, but that attempt had to be canceled because of & possible security breech.

On Movember 5, 2001, the ACSO developed their own tactical arrest plan and conductad a
briefing outlining that plan. Foliowing the briefing, the ACSO/SRT practiced several arrest
scenarios utilizing three ACSO vehicles.

On November 8, 2001 at approximately 0005 hours, during the ACSO/SRT tactical operation,
Cooper critically wounded ACSO Deputy Rob Marinez and was fatally wounded by ACSO
Deputy Joseph Gaoldsmith.

ACS0 Deputy Rob Marinez was flown to Phoenix, Arizona, where he was admitiad in critical
condition to the Barrows Meurclogical Institute.

Cooper was pronounced dead at the scena,

Apache Caunty Sherifi Brian Hounshell requested the Arizona Department of Public Safety,
Special Investigations Unit, respond and conduct the criminal investigation.

Detective Name 1D No. Location Date Supervisor

2613 32030200 Qa2 Lizutenant Tim Chung #4509

—
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Lead Detective

Detective Kevin Wood, §2613
Arizona Department of Public Saiety
Criminal Investigations Division
Special Investigations Unit

2102 West Encanto Boulevard
FPhoenix, Arizona 85003

Office: (602) 223-2627

Fax: (602) 223-2940

Charges:
Aggravated Assault ARS. §
Aggravated Assault ARS. §
Endangerment ARS. 8§
Endangsrment ARS §
Suspect:

William Milton Cooper (Deceased)
Date of Birth:

Physical Description: White - Male - §'3"

Social Security Number; *
Residence Address: ¢~

13-1204 (11/06/2001)
13-1204 (07/11/2001)
13-1201 (07/11/2001)
13-1201 (07/11/2001)

Eagar, Arizona 859385

Victim: (11/06/2001)

- 250 Pounds - Grey Hair - Green Eyes

MName: Rob Marinez (Critically Wounded)
Eusiness Address: Apache County Sheriff's Offica
F.0. Box 2518
St. Johns, Arizona 85935
Business Phone: (928) 337-4321 or (800) 352-1850
Detestive Name 1D Mo. Location r Date Supervisor ]
Kevin Wood 2613 32030200 |I Q2002 Listitenant Tim Chung #4503
Pana 1 nf 20
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Involved Agencies

Arizona Department of Public Safety
Criminal Investigations Division
Special Investigations Unit {siu)

2102 West Encanto Boulevard
Phoenix, Arizona 85009
(602) 223-2110

1. Sergeant Tim Chung #4509 - SIU Supervisor

2 Detective Frank Martinez #1334 - Interviews, Crime Scene

ol Detective Roger Keeling £4000 - Interviews, Crime Seena

4. Detective John Bottoms, #4290 - Interviews, Crime Scenc

5. Detective Mike Livingston #4397 - Interviews, Crime Scene

g. Detective John Allen #4511 - Interviews, Photographs, Crima Scene Diagram

il Detective Wayde Webb #4891 - Barrows Meurological Institute, Hospital Follow Up
8. Detective Bill Beck #5043 - Interviews

Arizona Department of Public Safety
Criminal Investigations Division
2102 West Encanto Boulevard
Phoenix, Arizona 85009
(602) 223-2000

1. Detactive Terry Johnson, #2479 - Pima County, Office of the Medical Examiner (OME)
Auiopsy Photographs, Autopsy Evidence Recovery

2. Detective Charles Sering, #4731 - Pima County OME - Assist Detective Johnson
Detective Mama [ ID Ma Location Date Supervisar |
Kevin Wood 26513 32030200 Dainanz Ligutanant Tim Ghung #4608 _[

Fana 2 ~f 240
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Arizona Department of Public Safety

ARIZONA DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC SAFETY

Highway Patrol Division
District Three
2102 West Encanto Boulevard
Phoenix, Arizena 85000
(B02) 223-2000

Officer Robert Tulk, #3824 - Crime Scene Security, Evidence Safekeeping

Apache County Sheriff's Office
Special Response Team (SRT)
PO Box #518
St. Johns, Arizona 85935
{928) 337-4321

Sheriff Brian Hounshell

2. Comrmander Andrew Tafoys

3. Commander Abraham Hunt

4. Commander James Womack

&, Sergeant Steven Brown

& Sergeant Clifford Thorn

7. Deputy Joseph Goldsmith

E. Deputy David Padilla

EI.- Deputy Matrese Avila

10.  Deputy Charles Brown

11.  Deputy Christopher Oakes

12, Deputy Alfonse Morales

13. Depuly Michasl Weood
_D¢Iccti1."& MName 1D ha. Lecation f Date II Supervisor
Kevin Waed 2513 32030200 || (g0 || Ligutenant Tim Chung #4603
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14.  Deputy Brannon Eagar
15.  Evidence Technician John Poe
Apache County Sheriff's Office
District One
PO Box #518
St Johns, Arizona 85936

(828) 337-4321
1, Commander Travis Simshauser - Incident Support
2 Deputy Alton Shepard - Incidant Support
3. Deputy Shawn Bodie - Incidant Support
4 Deputy Robert Platero - Incident Support
5 Deputy David Murray - Incidant Support

Eagar Police Department
FO Box #1300
Eagar, Arizona 85025
(928) 333-4127
1. Chief B. Scott Garms
2. Detective Paul Kirkham
3, Sergeant Fred Frazier
4, Officer John Crow
5. Oifficer John Miller
g Officer Michael Sweetser
7. Officer Troy Czarnyszka
|_DEEI'_‘{!|:E'-"E Mame 1D-No. Location Date Supervisar
Kavin Waood 2613 22030200 04/04/02 Lisutenant Tim C.'-lun-_.]_.'.'-‘.rjtﬂ oy
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| DR NUMBER: | 2001 - 070756 L

Pinetop/Lakeside Police Department
1360 MNorth Nigls Hansen Lane
Finstop - Lakeside, Arizona BREZg
(520) 368-8802

s 2 Crime Scene Investigator Bob Harkey - Crime Scene Photographs
Springerville Police Department
PO Box #380
Springerville, Arizona 85938

(928) 333-4000
1. Cificer David Gregory
a2, Animal Control Officer Dennis Gilliam

5t. Johns Police Department
PO Box #598
St. Johns, Arizona 85935

(928) 337-2440
I Chief James Zisler
2. Sergeant Donny Jones
3. Detactive Michas! Cirivelio
4, Officer Creig Wallace

Pima County - Office of the Medical Examiner
2825 East District Street
Tucson, Arizona B5714

(520) 294-3848

1. Erick Peters, M.D. - Farensic Pathologist
Dotective Name ID Na. Location Date r Supervisor
Eevin VWoad PE13 AFI30200 C04/02 J Lieutenant Tim Chung #4509 ==
Parna 5 ~f 20
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Matification:

On Tuesday, November &, 2001 at approximately 0100 hours, Arizona Depariment of Public
Safety (DPS) Detective Kevin Woad #2813, assigned to the Special Investigations Unit (SIL)
received an alpha page from the SIU Supervisor, DPS Sergeant Tim Chung #4609, The
page requested Detective Wood respond to the SIU office located at 2339 North 20™
Avenue, Phoenix, Arizona.

Detective Wood drove his assigned DPS vehicle to the SIU office, arriving at approximately
U125 hours. While at the SIU office. Detective Waood met with Sergeant Chung and SIU

Sergeant Chung advised the Apache County Sheriff's Office (ACS0) had been involved in an
"Officer Involved Shooting” (OIS) incident at 95 North Clearview Circlg, in Eagar, Arizona,
During the OIS, one ACSO deputy had been critically wounded and the lone suspect had
been killed. The sergeant advised the injured deputy was flown to St. Joseph's Medical
Center, Barrows Neurological Instituta (BNI), in Phoenix, Arizona.

Sergeant Chung said the Apache County Sheriff requested the DPS/SIU respond and
conduct the criminal investigation, Sergeant Chung assigned the case to Datective Wood
and assigned Detective Martinez to assjst.

Following the briefing at the SiU office, Sergzant Chung instructed the detectives tq pair up
and drive to Eagar, Arizona.

Response:

Defectives Wood and Martinaz drove Detective Wood's assigned vehicle to Eagar, Arizona,
arriving at the outer crime scene perimeter at approximately 0700 hours. The scene was
delineated by yellow police tape and was controlled by uniformed officers,

The uniformed officers acdvised a Command Post had been established at the ACSO facility
in Round Valley, Arizona. Detectives Wood and Martinez left the crime scena area and
drove to the ACSO facility at Highway 180-260 Wys, Round Valley, Arizona.

Detectives Wood and Martinez arrived at the ACSO facility in Round Valley at approximately
0710 hours.

Detective Mame 1D No. Location Date || Supervisor

Kevin Waood 2813 2030200 Cud 0002 ] Lisudenant Tim Chung #4600

Pana Rnf 39
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ACSO0 Briefing:

Upen arrival at the ACSO facility, Detactives Wood and Martinez met the othar SIU
detectives, members of the DPS Special Operations Unit (S0OU) and deputies from the
ACS0. The DPS/SOU had been called by the ACSQ, after the officer involved shooting, to
enter and search the suspect residence for additional hazards or suspects,

. On November 6, 2001 at approximately 0847 hours, the DPS/SOU enterad the
crime scene and searched Cooper's residence. No hazards ar additional
suspects ware found. (Supportive Documents: V. 8)

the criminal investigation.

At approximately 0715 hours, Commander Tafoya conducted a briefing for the benefit of the
SIU personnel. Commander Tafoya advised the SRT initiated a tactical plan to arrest
Williarm Milton Cooper sharily before mid night on November 5, 2001. The commander said
Cooper was wanted in Apache Cou nty for one count of aggravated assault and two counts of
endangarmeant,

Commander Tafoya said two SAT members were involved in an OIS shooting with Cooper,
during the tactical arrest cperation. Commander Tafoya said Deputy Rob Marinez was
critically wounded by Cooper and Cooper was mortally woundad by Deputy Joseph
Galdsmith,

Commander Tatoya said Deputy Maringz had baen traated at the scene by emergency
services personnel, fransported to the hospital in Springerville, Arizona and was then flown fo
the BNI in Phoenix, Arizona.

Commander Tafoya stated Cooper's body remained at the scene.
Commander Tafaya provided copies of Eagar Police Department (EPD) reports, the warranis

for Cooper's arrest, copies of the SRT tactical operation and a list of tha invelved SET
deputies, (Supportive Documents- Vitand V. 2)

Detective Name 1D No, Lacation Date J Supervisor

l Favin Wood 26813 IBI0200 04/04/02 | Lisutenant Tim Chung £ 1605

Page 7 of 39
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SIU Assignments:

At the conclusion of Commander Tafoya’s briefing, Sergeant Chung made the following SIU
assignments;

Detective Wood would act as lead investigator, assisted by Detective Martinez: Datectives
Keeling, Bottoms, Livingston and Martinez would conduct interviews and process the crime
scene; Detective Allen would photograph the involved deputies, conduct interviews and
process the crime scene for diagraming; Detective Beck would conduct interviews.

Sergeant Chung advised he would assign SIU Detective Wayds Webb to conduct the
hospital follow up at BNI. (Investigation: Supplemental Reports; 11. 1)

Interviews:

On November 6, 2001, the SIU detectives interviewed fifteen involved members of the
ACSO. The interviews were conducted at three locations, the ACSO facility in Round Vallay,
the Rode Inn Motel, 242 East Main Street, Springerville, Arizona and the Apache-Sitgreaves

Mational Forest Service Headquarters, Springenville, Arizona,

All the SIU eriminal interviews were voluntary in nature and all were audibly recorded. All
lapes used for the SIU interviews wers retained at the DPS Property and Evidence Section in
Phoenix, Arizona. (Supportive Docurments: V. 5

. The investigative narrative contains excerpts from interview summaries wilk
deputies who encountered Cooper, heard deputies issue verbal coemmands to
Cooper, saw muzzle flashes or heard gun shots,

. For complete interview summaries of all involved ACSO personnel, refer to the
Interview Saction of the report,

Deputy Joseph Goldsmith Interview Summary

- mvolvament - UG vehicle, truck bed, witnessed muzzle flashes from Cooper's
hand gun, shot William Miton Cooper after Cooper shot at Deputy Marinez.

Deputy Goldsmith said on November 5, 2001, he was contactad by ACSO Commander
James Womack and asked to respond to the ACSO facility in Round Valley at 1800 hours for
a SRT briefing. Deputy Goldsmith was told he briefing pertained to Wiliam Cooper.

Supervisor

]
r_l:letecriw: MName ﬂ D Mo | Location || Date

2613 |I 32030200 |I 0404002 J Lisutenant Tim Chung S4609

! Kevin Wood

Pama 2 ~F 20
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Deputy Goldsmith responded as requested and the briefing was conductad by ACSO
Commander Andrew Tafoya. The briefing outlined a felony arrest warrant for Williarm Milton
Cooper, who lived at 96 Clearview Circle, Eagar, Arizona, Deputy Goldsmith stated this was
the second time the ACSO prepared and planned to apprehend Cooper. Deputy Goldsmith
said the first plan called for an operation on September 11, 2001 but that plan was canceled,

During the brisfing Deputy Galdsmith recaived an assignmeant as one of four ACSO deputies
io be concealed in the bed of an undercover (UC) pick up truck. The SRT was o use aruse
lo gat Cooper out of his residence and near the UC vehicle, Once Cooper was near the UC
vehicle, Deputy Goldsmith and AGSO Deputy Rob Marinez were tasked with exiting the truck
bed and physically effecting the arrast.

Deputy Goldsmith said the tactical plan was based on encountering and arresting Cooper
away from his residence. Part of the tactical plan allowed for the SRT Tactical Van (Tac
Van) to block the road to the Cooper residence should Cooper make an attempt to return to
his residenca.

Deputy Goldsmith said the intelligence report presented at the briefing indicated Cooper may
have had numerous waapons inside his residenca.

Deputy Goldsmith stated or November 2, 2001, he was armed with his issuad Colt, .45
caliber, semi-automatic handgun loaded with nine live rounds, during the practice sessions
and the facfical operation at - 7' Eagar. Arizona,

Deputy Goldsmith said the SRT tactical plan called for UC deputies to drive the UG pick up
truck to an area near the Cooper residence and try to lure Cooper from the residence with
their presence. Deputy Goldsmith said the UC vehicle would have a total of seven (7)
deputies onboard; two (2) UC deputies in the drivers compartiment, one (1) SRT member on
the front floorboard of the UG vehicle, and four (4) SRT members cencealed under a blanket
in the truck bed.

Deputy Goldsmith said the UC vehicle and deputies would be supported by SRT members in

the tactical operation.

Deputy Goldsmith and the other SRT memoers left the brisfing and practiced the tactical plan
at the Apache County propearty at Highway 180-260 Wye, Eagar, Arizona, Deputy Goldsmith
said the SRT practiced without SRT gear for an hour or so, than put on their SRT gear and
practiced with the gear on.

Detective Name 1D No. r Location [ Date Supervisar

Favin Wood 2iE13 || 323030200 |I 04:04/03 Ligutenant Tim Chung #4809

Pans 9nf R4
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Deputy Goldsmith said during the practice sessions the SRT UC members developed a
number of verbal cues to be used whan the time was right for the arrest. Deputy Goldsmith
said the verbal cues would come from the UG deputies in the driver's compartmant and the
cues to be used would be based on the situational arrest scenario.

Deputy Goldsmith said once the SRT was comfortable with the tactical plan at the ACSO
facility, the SRT members loaded into their respective vehicles and proceeded toward the

target location.

Deputy Goldsmith said whan the UC vehicle departed the practice area the following
deputies were onboard:

. Commander Womack was assigned as driver

. Deputy Matrese Avila was assigned as the UC passenger

Deputy David Padilla was assigned 1o lay on the front floorboard

Deputy Goldsmith was assigned the middie of the truck bad

Deputy Charles Brown was assigned the driver's side of the truck bed
Deputy Rob Marinez was assigned the passenager's side of the truck bed
Commander Tafoya was assigned the foot of the truck bed

* = @ u g

Deputy Goldsmith related while en route toward the Cooper residence, Commander Tafoya
was having communication difficulties with the surveillance teams so the UC vehicla stopped
until the problem eould be rectified. Once the communication problem was remediad the UC
vehicle continued toward Coaper's residenca,

Deputy Goldsmith stated he and the other three deputies in the truck bed were covered by a
blanket and had no visual reference on the journey up the hill to the area north of the Cooper
rasidence,

Deputy Goldsmith said the UC vehicle came [0 a stop, Commander Womack exited the
vehicle on the driver's side and verbally infermed the SRT members in the truck bed thay

weare in position,

Commander Womack advisad the UC vehicle daputies a light was turned on inside the
Cooper residence. A short time later, Commander Womack advised the LUC vahicle deputies
the ocutside porch light at the Cooper residence had been turmed on.

A few minutes later, Deputy Goldsmith heard 4 vehicle engine turn on some distanca from
the UC vehicle. Commander Womack was still standing on the driver's side of the UC
vehicle and verbally told the UC vehicle deputias, "Here he (Cooper) comes."

Detective Mame 10 No. Location Diate Supervisor

Kevin Waad 2514 32030200 040402 Lieutznant Tim Chung 4809

Paoe 10 of 39
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Deputy Goldsmith said the surveillance team pravided a very descriptive account of Coopers
vehicle actions as it approached the UC vehicle. The surveillance team was using the ACS0O
radio to communicate with the UC vehicle deputies and the other SBT membears.

Deputy Goldsmith heard a vehicle stop near the UC vehicle. Deputy Goldsmith heard a male
voice say, “You need to get cut of here. You can't be here.” Deputy Goldsmith heard the
male voice tall Commander Womack he had to leave the area or he would call the palice.

Deputy Goldsmith heard Commander Womack and the male subject exchanging words near
the UC vehicle for a short time.

While the male was talking to Commander Womack, Deputy Geldsmith heard Commander
Tafoya use the ACSO radio and call for the Tac Van to block the roadway between Coopers
present vehicle location and his residence,

Deputy Goldsmith heard Cooper's vehicle drive away and heard Commander Womack say
something like, “There he (Cooper) goes and we're going too."

Deputy Goldsmith said Commander Tafoya and Deputy Charles Brown both uncovarad
themselves and exited the UC truck bed. Deputies Tafoya and Brown started to pursue
Cooper's vehicle on foot,

Deputy Goldsmith looked up from his truck bed position and saw Cooper's vehicle being
Stopped by the Tac Van with emergency lights (red and blue) activated, Deputy Goldsmith
said the stop occurred south of the location whars the UC vehicle and Cooper's vehicle had

been stopped.

Deputy Goldsmith saw the Tac Van and Cooper's vehicle stopped in the drive and thay
appeared to be positionad driver's side door to driver's side door.

Deputy Goldsmith saw Cooper's vehicle accelerate to the south toward his residence.
Commander Womack turned the UC vehicle and proceeded after Copper's vehicle
with Deputies Goldsmith and Marinez still in the truck bed.

Deputy Goldsmith saw Cooper's vehicle proceeded south along tha ridge to the front of his
residence with the UC vehicle following. Deputy Goldsmith obsarvad Cooper stop his vehicle
on the west side of the dirt'gravel drive adjacent to his yard. Deputy Goldsmith said
Commander Womack stoppad the UG vehicle tehind Cooper's vehicla,
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Once the UC vehicle came fo a stop, Deputy Goldsmith exited the truck had on the drivar's
side while Deputy Marinez exited the truck bed on the passenger's side.

Deputy Goldsmith proceeded on foot in a northeasterly direction toward two vehicles parked
on the east side of the drive, directly across from Coopers residence. Deputy Goldsmith lost
sight of Deputy Marinez at that point.

Az Deputy Goldsmith was running across the drive to take cover behind the parked cars. he
saw Cooper exiting his truck. Cooper exited his pick up via the driver's side door and went
around the front of the truck toward his residence. Deputy Geldsmith estimatad he was
approximately 30 feet fram Cooper at that point.

Deputy Goldsmith drew his service weapon and shouted, “Sheriff's Office, stop”® numerous
times, but Cooper did not res pond to the verbal commands and continued toward his
residence. Deputy Goldsmith said Cooper was not moving very fast due to the noticeable
limp.

As Deputy Goldsmith proceeded along the east side of the two parked vehiclas, he heard
Deputy Marinez shouting, “Sheriff's Office, stop" repeatedly bul Cooper did not stop and
continued toward his residence.

Deputy Goldsmith walked around the front of the second parked car, aimed his service
weapon at Cooper and walked west across the drive yelling, "Sheriff's Office, stop. Sheriff's
Office, stop,” Deputy Goldsmith said Cooper did not stop and he (Cooper) yalled, "Na."

Cooper almost made it to the door located on the east side of his residence when Deputy
Goldsmith saw Coaper reach near his waist. Deputy Goldsmith continued ta iszue verbal
commands to Cooper when ha saw, "An arm come up and a then muzzle blast, and |
(Goldsmith) heard a gun shet,” Deputy Goldsmith said it appeared Cooper was holding a
gun with his right hand when he pointed and fired in the direction of Deputy Marinaz.

Deputy Goldsmith said he saw a Muzzie blast in the direction of Deputy Marinez. Deputy
Goldsmith said Deputy Marinez was posificned north of Coaoper, along the east sida of the
residence, near an abandonad vehicle in the yard. Deputy Goldsmith estimated the distance
between Cooper and Deputy Marinez at approximately 20 to 30 feat whan Cooper fired the
gun at Deputy Marinez. Deputy Goldsmith said whan Cooper fired at Deputy Marinez, it
exposed his (Cooper's) right side and upper right torso ragion.

Deputy Goldsmith estimated he was about five to ten fest in front of Cooper's vehicle and 15
o 20 feet away from Cooper when he (Cooper) fired at Deputy Marinez.
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Fearing for the life of Deputy Marinez and for his own safety, Deputy Goldsmith advanced on
Cooper, firing his service weapon. Deputy Goldsmith utilized a two handad grip on his
service weapon, aimed at the center of Cooper's torso and continued to fire until he {Cooper)
stopped shooting. Deputy Goldsmith saw two or three more muzzle blasts from Cooper's
gun toward Deputy Marinez hefore he (Cooper) stopped shooting and fall to the ground.

Cooper fall to the ground land ing with his head to the west and his fect to the east.

When asked what he was trying to do when he continually shot at Cooper, Deputy Goldsmith
said all he wanted to do was stop Cooper from shooting,

Deputy Goldsmith estimated he was appraximately five (5) feat from Cooper and 15 to 20
feet from Deputy Marinez when the shooting was over. Deputy Goldsmith said he, Deputy
Marinez and Coeper were all in close proximity to each ather when the shooting occurred.

Daputy Goldsmith said he fired nine (9) rounds at Cooper and at the end of the shooting, he
holstered an empty service weapon with the slide locked to the rear. Deputy Goldsmith said
his service weapon remained in his holster until he turned it over to Commander Tafoya.

Deputy Goldsmith looked quickly at Cooper. Cooper was not moving, so Deputy Goldsmith
focused his attention toward Deputy Marinez’ location. Deputy Marinez was lying on the
ground. It was at that point Deputy Goldsmith realized Deputy Marinaz had been shot by
Cooper. It was also at that same time Deputy Goldsmith noticed other ACSO deputies
arriving to assist.

Deputy Goldsmith went to the aid of Deputy Marinez and found him lying on his back with
what he thought was a bullet wound to the Jef side of nis head, Deputy Marinez' head was
to the west and his feet were to the east, and he was actively bleeding from the head

wound,

Deputy Goldsmith spoke to De puty Marinez but Deputy Marinez was not able 1o respond
varbally. Deputy Goldsmith remained with Deputy Marinez until the Emergency Medical
Personnel (EMS) arrived and toak over Deputy Marinez’ care.

After the EMS personnezl loaded Deputy Marinez into the ambulance and they departed the
scene, Deputy Goldsmith took a break and drank some water,

Detective Nama 1D Mo. Location Date | Supervizor

Feevin Wood 2513 SEmIE00 A0 | Lisutenant Tim Chung #4509

- Pane 12 ~F a0




ARIZONA DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC SAFETY
INVESTIGATIVE REPORT

| DR NUMBER: | 2001 - 070756 |

Shortly after taking his break, Commander Tafoya took custody of Deputy Goldsmith's

service weapon and gave him another service weapon to use. (Investigation: SIU

Supplemental Reports; Detective John Bottoms #4290, regarding the seizure of Deputy
Goldsmith's service WEapon)

Deputy Goldsmith said both he and Deputy Marinez wera wearing clearly visible ACSOQ/SRT
(Police) attire during this operation. (Photographs: V. §)

Deputy Goldsmith had no personal contact with Cooper prior to Movernber 5, 2001, but he
was aware Cooper presentad a high potential for violence based on the SRAT briefing.

Deputy Goldsmith said there was adequate artificial lighting produced by the residence and
vehiclas for him to clearly see Cooper throughout the shooting. Deputy Galdsmith
remembered the head lights of Cooper's vehicle being on but he was not sure about the
head lights of the UC vehicle.

Commander Andrew Tafoya Interview Summary

. Involvameant - SBT Commander, UC vehicle, truck bed, withessad muzzle flashes
from Cooper's hand gun, heard gun shots

Commander Tafoya said in the summer of 2001, his agency was contaciad by the Eagar
Police Department regarding an incident involving William Milton Cooper. Cooperwas a
resident of Eagar, Arizona, at the time of the incident. Commander Tafoya learnad Cooper
was wanted on federal tax charges in 1998 as well as aggravated assault and felony
endangerment charges in Apache County in July of 2001.

Commander Tafoya said he started to develop a tactical plan fo arrest Coecper earlier this
year and enlisted the aid of the Maricopa County Sheriff's Office (MCS0), Special Weapons
and Tacties Unit (SWAT).

Commander Tafoya said the MCSQ/SWAT unit responded to Apache County and developed
a tactical plan at the Sheriffs request. (Supportive Documents: V. 2) The SRT and
MCSO/SWAT units plannad for the first tactical operation on September 11, 2001, but that
plan was canceled because of a possible security breech.

Commander Tafoya and the SAT members evaluated the original Flan presented by the
MCSO/SWAT but decided to develop and use their own plan to arrest Cooper.
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As a result of surveillance and intelligence infermation, Commander Tafoya said it was very
likelty Cooper had several weapons inside his residence, which would present a significant
risk to any officar(s) atempting to make entry. The SRT developed a tactical plan that used a
ruse o lure Cooper from his residence to majke the arrest. (Supportive Documents: V. 2

Commander Tafoya arranged for a SRT briefing at 1800 hours on November 5, 2001, at the
ACS0 facility in Round Valley, Arizona. Commander Tafoya said the SRT would be brisfed
on the tactical operation designed to arrast Cooper on the Apache Cou nty charges. During
the briefing, Commander Tafoya addressed the dangers associated with this tactical
Operation and stressed officer safaty.

Commander Tafoya said the SRT tactical plan called for three vehicles occupied by SRT
deputies and two surveillance SRT members on the ground, near the Cooper residence.
The vehicles were staffed as follows;

-

Undercever (UC) Vehicle (pick up truck) occupied by seven SRT deputies
Fully Marked ACSO Tactical Van (Tac Van) occupied by Sheriff Haounshell,
two SRAT deputies and one ACSO evidence technician

Fully Marked ACSO Chase Vehicle occupied by three SBT deputies

the Tac Van would be usad to stop Cooper from returning to his residence once he |ef and
the Chase Vehicle would be used should Cooper attempt to drive off the hil top.

Commander Tatoya said the SRT surveillance team members were a critical compaonent of
the tactical plan. It was the SRT surveillance team’s responsibility to advise the rest of the
SAT members regarding people and vehicle movemeants at the Cooper residence, The Tac
Van was instructed to pull into a blocking position based on information received from the
SAT surveillance team.

Commander Tafoya led the briefing and made the SBT assignments. After the briafing,
Commander Tafoya took part in SRT training sessions at the ACSQ facility in Round Valley,
Arizona. Once the SAT was comfortabla with the tactical plan and the training scenarios,
Commander Tafoya made the decision to put the arrest plan in motian.

Commander Tafoya positioned himself at the foot of the UC truck bed with three other SRT
members (Deputies Rob Marinez, Joseph Goldsmith and Charlas Brown). Commander
Tafoya was one of the arrest team membears. The factical plan called for the driver of the
UC vehicle (Commander Womack) to encounter Cooper away from his residence, give a
verbal cue for action and have the SRT members in the truck bad exit the vehizle and arrast

Cooper.
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While in the UC truck bed, Commander Tafoya was armed with an ACSO jssued Colt, .45
caliber, semi-automatie, hand gun. Commander Tafoya maintained SAT radio
communication using a portable ACSO0 radio.

Commander Womack drove the UG vehicle up a hill and parked the UC vehicle north of the
Cooper residence. Commander Tafoya and the geputies in the truck bed were covered by a
blanket and could not tell exactly where the UC vehicle had come fo a stop.

Once parked on the top of the hill north of the Cooper residence, Commander Tafoya heard
Commander Womack exit the UC vehicle on the drivers side. Commander Womack verbally
advised the SRT members in the truck bed regarding what he observed at the Cooper

residenca,

A short time after parking on the top of the hill, Commander Womack informed the UC
deputies an inside light had been turned on at the Cooper residence. Shortly thereaftar,
Commander Womack told the UC deputies a porch light had been turned on at the Cooper
rasidence.

Within another few minutes, the SRT surveillance team advised, via radio, Cooper left hig
residence, entered a pick up truck and started driving toward the UC vehicle's location.

Commander Tafoya heard a vehicle pull up near the left rear comer of the UG vehicle and
stap, with the engine running. Commandar Tafoya heard Commander Womack engage in
conversation with 2 male subject (Cooper). Commander Tafaya heard the male voice
(Cooper) tell Cormmander Wamack to get off the mountain. After a few minutes, Commander
Tafoya heard Cooper's vehicle drive away,

Commander Tafoya heard Commander Womack say, "He's (Cooper) moving." Commander
Tafoya pulled the blanket off himself and the other SRT members in the truck bed.
Commander Tafoya looked up from the truck bed and saw Cooper's vehicle speeding away

to the south.

Commander Tafoya waiched Cooper’s vehicle drive southbound. Commander Tafoya saw
the Tac Van with head lights and emergency lights (red and blue) activated, positionad south
of Cooper's vehicle. Commander Tafoya saw brake lights on Cooper's vehicla and both
vehicles came to a stopped position, facing one another,
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The Tae Van and Cooper's vehicle were positioned in the driveway as follows;

. Cooper's vehicls was facing south toward the suspect residence
- The Tac Van was facing north toward the original location of the UC vehicle

Commander Tafoya and Deputy Charles Brown exited the UC truck bed and began running
south toward Cooper's vehicle. As tha Commander ran toward Cooper's vehicle, ha realized
he may end up in a cross fire situation &0 he veered slightly to his laft (east).

Commander Tafoya got within 20 to 20 yards of Cooper's vehicle when it accelerated
around the Tac Van to the west and preceaded south on the driveway, toward Coopaer's
residenca.

Commander Tafoya continued ru nning south. Commander Tafoya past Sheriff Hounshell
and was then passed by the UC vehicle, also headed south,

Commander Tafoya estimated he was about 80 yards from Cooper’s vehicle when it came to
a stop, near Cooper's residence. Commander Tafoya saw Deputy Brown running in front of
him and was passed by ACSO Deputy David Padilla.

Commander Tafoya saw Cooper pass in front of his vehicle head lights, headed toward his
residence.

Commander Tafoya got within an estimated 40 to 80 yards of the UC vehicle when he saw
Cooper stop and a flash (muzzle blast) at Cooper’s right (north) side. At about that same
time, Commander Tafoya heard gun shots. Commander Tafoya described the shots as two
initial shots, a brief pause and a third shot followad immediately by a succession of shots,
Commander Tafoya thought the first shots sounded like they came from one weapan whils
the rest of the shats came from a larger caliber weapon,

Commander Tafoya continued past the UC vehicle and approached the scene from the east
side of Cooper's vehicle. As Commandar Tafoya went around Coopers vehicle, he saw
Deputy Goldsmith pointing a hand gun at Cooper, who was lying on the ground. Commander
Tafoya proceeded toward Cooper and also coverad him with his hand gun. (Commander
Tafoya did not know Deputy Marinez had been shot af that point)

Commander Tafoya said Cooper was lying on his left side and he saw movement in Cooper's
hand. Commander Tafoya observed a silver metal revolver in Cooper's hand. Cormmander
Tafoya removed the revohver from Cooper's hand and placed it on the ground to the east of

Cooper.
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Commander Tafoya donned latex gloves and checked Cooper for vital signs. No vital signs
were found and it appeared Cooper was suffering from a gun shot wound to the head. After
checking for vital signs, Cemmander Tatoya th ought the revelver was still too close 1o

Cooper so he picked it up and placed it on a small retaining wall, well cut of Cooper's reach.

Commander Tafoya heard deputies saying, “Rob are you okay? Rob are you okay?
Commander Tafoya looked to his right and saw Deputy Marinez lying on the ground,

Commander Tafoya approachad Deputy Marinez who was being attended by Deputy
Goldsmith. It appeared Deputy Marinez was awake but he was not responding.

Commander Tafoya radioed for the staged medical personnal (a Paramedic and an EMT), &
ground ambulance and the DPS Air Rescue helicopter stationad in Flagstaff, Arizona.

Commander Tafoya notified the Sheriff that Deputy Marinez had been wounded and Cooper
had been killed. Sheriff Hounshell and Commander Tafoya began to take over incident
command and started securing the scene. Sheriff Hounshell requested the DPS/SIU
respond and conduct the criminal investigation.

While making incident assignments, Deputy Goldsmith walked up to Commander Tafoya and
asked what he should do with his service weapon., Commander Tafoya observed the Colt,
-45 caliber, semi-automatic, hand gun in Deputy Goldsmith's holster. Deputy Goldsmith's
weapon had the slide locked to the rear with a magazine in place.

Deputy Goldsmith took his weapon out of the holstar and handed it to Commander Tafoya.
Commander Tafoya took De puty Goldsmith's weapon and gave Deputy Goldsmith his
(Tafoya's) hand gun as a replacement. Commander Tafoya did not manipulate Deputy
Goldsmith's weapon,

Later, Commander Tafoya gave Deputy Goldsmith's weapon to DPS Officer Rob Tulk #3824
for safekesping. (Investigation: Supplemental Reports: Highway Patrol Division:
Officer Tulk’s Supplemeantal Report)

Cormmander Tafoya said after some time passed, the Tac Van was repositioned from it's
ariginal location behind the UC vehicle to a position southeast of the residence, in the

driviaway.
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Commander Tafoya left the crime scene and drove ia the hospital in Springerville, Arizona, to
check on the conditiocn of Deputy Marinez. While at the hospital, Commander Tafoya saw
Deputy Marinez' clothing in a plastic bag near the rear door to the Emergency Department.
Commander Tafoya instructed ACSO Deputy Mike McQuay to take control of Deputy
Marinez’ clothing. Deputy McQuay did as instructed. (Supportive Documants: V., 5)

Commander James Womack Interview Summary

\y Involvement - UC vehicle, driver, spoke with Cooper during the tactical
operation, saw muzzle flashes from Cooper's hand gun, heard gun shots

On November 5, 2001 at 1000 hours, Commander Womack said he attended a supervisors
meeting. Commander Wormack said during the meeting, they discussad how to handle the
situation with Cooper and what tactics should be utilized to affect an arrest, Commander
Womack said it was decided during the meeting to have a fraining mission at 1800 hours
with the ACSCO/SRT.

Commander Womack said he has known of Goaper for a long time. Commander Weomack
said Cooper lived in St. Johns and operated an anti-government radio station, Commandear
Womack said it wasn't until Cooper moved to Eagar when the problems started.
Commander Womack said there was a federal warrant for Cooper's arrest, but the local
police did not execute the warrant becaysa they heard of Cooper stating ha would kill as
many officers as he had to. Commander Womack said retired DPS Highway Patrelman
Dave Mann was geod friends with Cooper and visited him often. According to Commandaer
Womack, Mann reporied the threats to kill officers to the local palice departments.
Commander Womack said Mann told him that he had an agreement with Cooper to take
Cooper's family out of the house if he was ever barricadad inside because Cooper was gaing
to fight to his death.

Commander Womack said the local police became involved with Cooper once he started
assaulting people with guns,

Commander Womack said he arrived at the ACS0 substation a little after 1800 hours and
altended the training maneuvers with the rest of the ACSO/SRT. Commander Womack said
a plan to exacute the arrest warrant for Cooper was initiated and practiced by the
ACSQ/SRT. Commander Womack said Commander Tafoya conducted the training.
Commander Womack said during the training, it was decided to attempt to execute the
arrest warrant for Cooper that evening.
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Commander Womack said he was to be in civilian clothes and assigned to drive his personal
pickup to the property north of Cooper's residence. Commander Womack said Deputy Avila
was assigned to accompany him wearing civilian clothes. Commandar Womack said his
pickup was a tan 1989 Cheavrolet pickup. The pickup had no police markings on it.

Commander Womack said the plan was to see if Cooper approached him. If Cooper did
approach him, ACSO/SRT Deputies Goldsmith, Marinez, Brown and Tafoya who were laying
on the bed of the pickup would arrest Cooper,

Commandar Womack said he would give the arrest signal by asking Cooper, *What can [ do
for you?" Another ACSOYSET member, Deputy Padilla, who lying on the floorboard of the
pickup was to eliminate Cooper's dog which was known to be attack trained and vicious.

Commander Womack said two or three officers were assigned to watch Cooper's house and
advise when Cooper left the house and approached Commander Womack . Commander
Wemack said the surveillance officers were positioned northeast of Cooper's property, but
he did not know exactly where.

Commander Womack said Cooper's house was on the south side of the hilltop, Several
ciner lots which were for sale were on the north side of the hilltop. Commandar Womack
said he drove his truck to the north side of the nilitop and parked. Commander Womack
said once parked, he unloaded a fow pieces of wood. Commander Wornack said hewas to
wait 15 fo 20 minutes before starting a fire.

Commander Womack said he and Deputy Avila stood outside his pickup. Commander
Waomack said after a short period of time, he saw lights on the side of Cooper's residence
turn on, off and then back on. Commander Womack said he then heard Cooper's pickup
truck start and drive toward him. Commander Weomack said Deputy Avila was to take cover
in front of the truck once Cooper arrived,

Cormmander Womack said Cooper arrived in his pickup with his high beams shining in his
face. Commander Wornack said he could not see 2o he taok his hat off to block the lights
and he walked a little fo the west aut of the lights. Commander Womack said Cooper yellad
at him from his pickup. Commander Womack said Cooper told him to get off the mountain
because he did not belong there. Commander Womack said he tried to get Cooper out of
the vehicle by teliing him he could not hear him. Commandar Womack said Cooper stuck
his head out of the window and screamed at him. Commander Womack said he spoke
palitely to Cooper because he did not want ta upset him, Commander Womack said Cooper
continued to yell at him, telling him to get off the mountain. Cooper finally tald Commander
Womack he had ten minutes to gat off the proparty or he was going to call the police.
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Commander Womack said Cooper accelerated his pickup in revarse and turned around to
go back to his house. Commander Womack said they had planned to have the ACSO/SRT
truck block Cooper's return to his house in the event he was not arrested by the arrest team
lying in the back of the pickup. Commander Womack said the SAT truck drove up the hill
with all of its reof mounted emergency Iights activated. Commander Womack said Coopear's
pickup came to a stop in front of the SRT truck and then drove around it on the west side,

Commander Womack said he ran to his pickup and told the arrest team it was time to go.
Commander Womack said Tafoya and Brown jumped out of the pickup and began running
toward Cooper's house. Commander Womack said he drove his pickup toward Cooper's
residence. Commander Womack said it was stressed during the training not to lat Cooper
get back into his house because the information they had indicated Cooper had a large
amount of weapons and ammunition inside.,

Commander Womack said as he drove around the SRT truck, he saw a deputy lying on the
ground. Commander Womack said he did not know if Cooper had shot the deputy or ran
him over with his truck. Commander Womack said he pulled his pickup to a stop behind
Cooper's pickup which was parked in front of his house,

Commander Womack said Cooper was just getting out of his pickup when he drove to a
stop behind him. According to Commander Womack , Deputies Marinez and Galdsmith
jumped out of the back of Commander Womack s pickup and began yelling "Sheriff's Office,
stop” while they ran toward Coeper. Commander Womack said Deputy Goldsmith ran
around the left side of Cooper's truck and Deputy Marinez ran around the right toward the

house,

Commander Womack said his handgun was in the small of his back and as he attempted to
retrieva it, he dropped it on the ground. Commander Womack said he had to stop and pick
it up before continuing aftar Cooper, who was running toward his house.

Commander Womack said Deputy Marinez approached the front vard of Cooper's house
from the north and Deputy Gaoldsmith approached from the south east. Commander
Womack said Cooper was in frant of Deputy Goldsmith. Commandar Womack said he saw
Cooper extend his right arm toward the north and saw two or three flashes from his hand.
Cemmander Womack said he saw something in Cooper’s hand and when it flashed. he said
he knew it was a gun. Commander Womack said Cooper was about 15 to 20 feet away from
Deputy Marinez when he began shooting.
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Immediately after the shots were fired by Cooper, Commander Womack said he heard
several other shots and saw Deputy Goldsmith shooting as he ran toward Cooper.
Commander Womack said after Cooper started shooting his gun toward Deputy Marinez,
Deputy Goldsmith started shooting his gun toward Cooper. Commander Womack said
Deputy Goldsmith ended up about two to three feet from Cooper as he fell down.
Commander Womack saw Deputy Marinez fall also. Commander Womack said he ran and
pointed his gun at Cooper and turned to Deputy Marinez asking him if he had been shot.

Commander Womack said other officers arrived and told Commander Womack that Deputy
Marinez was shot in the head.

Commander Womack said he thought the handgun ended up in Cooper's left hand as he lay
on the ground. Commander Womack said Commander Tafoya checked Cooper for a pulse
and removed the handgun from Cooper's hand and moved it about ane foot away.
Commander Womack said he asked Commander Tafoya to move the handgun further away
from Cooper. Commander Womack said Commander Tafoya put the gun on top of some
rocks. Commander Womack said Commander Tafoya found ne pulse on Cooper.

Commander Wornack said smergency medical technicians worked on Deputy Marinez,
Commander Womack said his attention remained on Cooper.

Sergeant Steven Brown interview Summary

= Invalvemnent - Tac Van, driver, orderad Cooper out of his vehicle at qun point,
heard gun shots

Sergeant Brown attended the briefing conducted by Commander Tafoya and was ultimately
assigned as the driver of the fully marked SBT Tactical Van (Tac Van). Sergeant Brown
understood the deputies assigned to the Tac Van were tasked with keeping Cooper from
returning to his residence, after he (Cooper) made contact with the ACSO undercover {UC)

vehicle.

Sergeant Brown said after the briefing, the SRT members practiced different scenarios at the
ACS0 property in Round Valley, Arizona, fora couple hours. Sergeant Brown said once the
practice was completed, he and the other SRT members got into thair respective vehicles
and prepared for the tactical operation.

During the final stages of training, as well as the tactical operation, Sergeant Brown was
armad with a Colt, .45 caliber, sermi-automatic hand gun and a M-4, 223 caliber, sub-
machine gun.
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Sergeant Brown said the Tac Van was staffed as tollows for the tactical operation:

. Sergeant Brown was the driver

. Sheriff Brian Hounshell was the nght front passenger
. Deputy Christopher Qakes in the rear

. Evidence Technician John Pos in the rear

Sergeant Brown departed the ACSO Preperty and drove the Tac Van to the Eagar City
Swimming Pool. From the swimming pool area, Sergeant Brown said he had 3 full view of
the Cooper residence and the top of the hill on which the residence was located.

Sergeant Brown saw the UG vehicle drive up the hill toward Cooper's residence and veer to
the left (north), eventually parking on top of the hill, north of the Cooper residence. Sergeant
Brown said the UC vehicle lights were turned off and he no longer could see the UC vehicle.

Sergeant Brown said the UC daputies were in position for 10 and 15 minutes whan he saw
lights activated on a vehicle in front of Coopers residence. Sergeant Brown said the vehicle
left the Cooper residence and drove toward the UC vehicle location,

Once Sergeant Brown saw the vehicle from the Cooper residence near the UC vehicle, ha
departed the Eagar City Swimming Pool area and drove toward the Cooper residence. As
Sergeant Brown drove the Tac Van toward the target area, he listened to tha ACS0 radio
and learned Cooper stopped his pick up by the UC vehicle but he never got out.

Sergeant Brown drove the Tac Van up the hill, north of the Cooper residence, with the lights
off. Once the Tac Van reached the top of the hill, Sergeant Brown looked to the north and
saw Commander Womack (a UG deputy) standing near the UC vehicle. Commander
Womack was illuminated by vehicle head lights.

Sergeant Brown heard the ACSO surveillance deputies advise, via the ACSO radio, Cooper
did not exit his pick up and he (Cooper) was leaving. At that point, Sergeant Brown tumed
on the Tac Van head lights and emergancy lights (red and blug) and started driving toward
Cooper’s vehicle.

= Coopers vehicle was traveling southbound toward the suspect residenca
- The Tac Van was traveling northbound toward the UC vehicle location
! Detective Name 1D No. Location Date Supervisor
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In an attermnpt to stop Coaoper's vehicle, Sergeant Brown drove the Tac Van in the middle of
the dirt driveway. As the two vehicles approached each other, Sergeant Brown stopped the
Tac Van in the middle of the driveway causing Cooper to slop his vehicle directly in front of
the Tac Van, offset slightly to the west.

At that point, Sergeant Brown saw Cooper extend his right hand out the drivers side open
window, as if he were surrendering. After seeing Coopar's right hand extended, Sergeant
Brown exited the driver's side of the Tae Van,

Sergeant Brown left the driver's side doar open, clearly displaying the ACS0 police markings
to Cooper. Sergeant Brown said the head lights from the Tac Van elearly illuminated Cooper

seated behind the steering wheel of the pick up.

Sergeant Brown aimed his M-4 sub-machins gun directly at Cooper and shoutad verbal
commands announcing, “Sheriffs Office. Put your hands in the air,” Sergeant Brown heard
Sheriif Brian Hounshell shouting the same verbal commands at Cooper from the passenger's
side of the Tac Van. Sergeant Brown left the Tac Van running and all lights activated when

he exited the vehicle.

Sergeant Brown saw Cooper look toward Sheriff Hounshell for a momeant. When Cooper
looked at the Sheriff, Sergeant Brown laft the cover provided by the driver's side door of the
Tac Van and stood directly in front of Cooper's vehicle. Sergeant Brown pointed his M-4
directly at Cooper.

Sergeant Brown said Cooper stared directly at him for few seconds, turned the pick up
wheels to the right (west) just enough to miss the front of the Tact Van and accelerated

directly at hirm.

Sergeant Brown was forced to jump out of the way to his right (east), toward the Tag Van, to
avoid being struck by Cooper's vehicle. As Cooper's vehicle drove past Sergeant Brown,
Sergeant Brown attampted to knock Cooper's hands off the steering wheel using the butt end
of the M-4 riflz. The effort to knack Cooper's hands from the stearing wheel failed.

Az Cooper's vehicle continued past Sergeant Brown, Sergeant Brown attermpted to reach
into Cooper's vehicle and knack the gear shift out of gear. That effort also failed.

During Sergeant Brown's repaated atternpts to stop Coopar, the magazine in his M-4 rifle fgl
apart, causing .223 caliber live rounds to fall out of the magazing and onto the dirt driveway.

Cooper's vehicle drove past Sergeant Brown to the south, toward Coopers residence.

Lecation Diata [ Supervisor
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Sergeant Brown replaced the broken M-4 magazine with a fully loaded magazine from his
tactical carrier and began running after Cooper's vehicle.

Sheriff Hounshell instructad Sergeant Brown to stop running and retrieve the Tac Van.
Sergeant Brown tumed around, ran to the Tac Van, effected a u-turn and proceedsd south

after Cooper.,

As Sergeant Brown arrived in the area of the Cooper residence and parked the Tac Van
behind the UG vehicle, he heard a series of gun shots. Sergeant Brown described the shots
as coming from two different caliber weapons, one small and one larger. Sergeant Brown
heard two to four rounds from the small caliber weapon followed by several rounds from the

larger caliber weapon.

Sergeant Brown exited the Tac Van, locked toward the residence and saw several deputies
in the front yard area. As Sergeant Brown tactically approached the front of the Cooper
residence, he heard somecna say, "Rob has been shot” :

Sergeant Brown continued to move tactically toward the residence and saw Cooper lying on
the ground being covered by Commander Womack . Sergeant Brown moved to within three
feet of Cooper and covered him with his M-4 rifla.

Sergeant Brown saw a silver revolver on the ground, less than a foot from Cooper's right
hand. Sergeant Brown saw Commandear Tafoya pick up the revolver and mave it to a small
retaining wall, out of Coopers reach. Sergeant Brown searched Cooper's lower extremities
for any additional weapons but foeund none. Sergeant Brown discovered an emply pistal
halster on Cooper's right side.

Sergeant Brown looked to the north and saw Deputy Marinez lying on the ground, near the
residence. Sergeant Brown continued to cover both Cooper and the east side of the
residence with his M-4 rifle.

Sergeant Brown yelled fo Deputy Oakes to radio for Emergency Medical Services. Deputy
Crakes did as requasted.

Sergeant Brown continued to covar both Cooper and the residence until ralieved by
Commander Tafoya. Onece relieved, Sergeant Brown made his M-4 safe, placed it in the rear
of his assigned vehicle and want to meat Deputy Marinez’ wife.

Detective Name ID Mo. Location Dt Supervisor
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Once Sergeant Brown finishad assisting Mrs. Marinez, he returned to the shooting scene and
met with Commander Womack . Commander Womack asked Sergeant Brown to transport
Deputies Goldsmith and Brown to the ACSO facility in Round Valley, Arizona. Sergeant
Brown did as requested.

Sheriff Brian Hounshell Interview Summary

s Imvolvement - County Sheriff, Tac Van, front seat passengar, orderad Cooper
out of hiz vehicle at gun point, heard gun shots

Sheriff Hounshell said on Movember 5, 2001, he assisted the SRT with a tactical operation
designed to apprehend William Cooper. Sheriff Hounshell said Cooper was wanted on
federal tax charges as well as aggravated assault and felony endangerment charges in
Apache County.

sheriff Hounshell said his agency considered a tactical operation to arrest Cooper in the past
and had contacted the Maricopa County Sheriff's Office (MCSOQ), Special Weapons and
Tactics Unit (SWAT) regarding that possibility.

Sheriff Hounshell said the MCSO/SWAT unit responded to Apache County and developed a
tactical plan at his request. (Supportive Documents: V. 2} The ACSO/SRT and
MCSO/SWAT units planned for the operation on September 11, 2001, but that plan was
canceled because of a possible security breech.

On November 5, 2001 at approximately 1800 hours, Sheriff Hounshell responded to the
ACSO facility in Round Valley, Arizona, to take part in the ACSO/SRT briefing. Sheriff
Hounshell was filling in for the ACSO chiaf deputy who was unavailable,

Sheriff Hounshell attended the briefing led by Commander Tafoya. Sheriff Hounshell was
asked to fill in for the absent chisf deputy who had been assigned to the front passenger's
seat in the ACS0 Tac Van,

Sheriff Hounshell took part in the SRT fraining sessions at the ACS0 facility in Round Valley,
Arizona and said the Tac Van and onboard deputies were to be used to stop Cooper from
returning to his residence once he had laift,

[_Detecli-.re Name D Mo, Locatian [ Date r Supervizor
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Sheriff Hounshell said the Tac Van was staffed as follows:

Sergeant Steven Brown was assigned as driver

Sheriff Hounshell was assigned as front passenger

Deputy Christopher Cakes was assignad to the rear of the van
Evidence Technician John Poe was assigned to the rear of the van

Once the SRT was comfortable with the tactical plan, Sheriff Hounshell and the others got
into the Tac Van and proceeded to a location below the Cooper residence. The Sheriff sajd
he could see vehicular traffic on the top of the hill based on head lights.

Within minutes, Sheriff Hounshell saw a vehicle depart from the Cooper residence and
proceed toward the location of the UC vehicle. Sheriff Hounshell heard via ACSO radio
Cooper was in his vehicle headed toward the UC vehicle.

At that point, Sheriff Hounshell said the Tac Van left the original surveillance position and
procesded to the dirt road directly below Cooper's residence. Sheriff Hounshell said upon
reaching the dirt road directly below the Cooper residence, he no longer had visual contact
with Cooper's vehicle because of the steep incline. Sheriff Hounshell said the ACS0 radio
transmissions were poor and he could not tll what was going on between the UG vehicla
and Cooper's vehicle,

Sheriff Hounshell said Sergeant Brown drove the Tae Van up to the top of the hill. Once at
the top of the hill, Sheriff Hounshell could s2e two vehicles to the north of his location.

Sheriff Hounshell saw one of the vehicles headed directly toward the Tac Van. Sergeant
Brown activated the emergency lighting (red and blue) on the Tac Van and moved into
position 1o stop the approaching vehicle, Sheriff Hounshall said the approaching vehicle
(Cooper's) slowed and then stopped directly in front of the Tac Van, offset slightly to the
west.

Shariff Hounshell exited the passengers side of the Tac Van while Sargeant Brown exitad
the driver's side. Sheriff Hounshell looked ovar the hood of the Tac Van and clearly saw
Cooper seated behind the steering wheel of the pick up truck.

Sheriff Hounshell took a position of cover behind the Tac Van, pointed a tactical rifla (Wilson,
Combat, AR-15) at Cooper and began shouting, “Sheriff's Office. Put your hands where | can
zee them."
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Sheriff Hounshell said Cooper put his left hand and arm out the open drivers side window
but he appeared angry. Sheriff Hounshell said Cooper appeared to comply with the verbal
commands by putting his right hand out the driver's side window but quickly Cooper drew his
right hand back into the vehicle.

Sherifi Hounshell saw Cooper turn the steering wheel to the right (west) and the pick up
accelerated in an attempt to get past the Tac Van. Sheriff Hounshell eontinued to cover
Cooper across the Tac Van hood until it was not safe because of Sergeant Brown's position,

At that point, Sheriff Hounshell took a position at the right rear of the Tac Van and covered
Cooper's vehicle as it proceeded south toward the residence ata high rate of speed.

As Sheriff Hounshell was repositioning to the right rear of the Tac Van he heard a lot of noise
and could not tell if Sergeant Brown had somehow been run over by Cooper's vehicle.
Sheriff Hounshell saw Sergeant Brown a moment fater running toward the Tac Van and
could tell he had not been injured.

Sheriff Hounshell instructed Sergeant Brown to get into the Tac Van and tum it around.
Sergeant Brown tumed the Tae Van around and Sheriff Hounshell saw the UG vehicle
headed toward his direction. Sheriff Hounshall also saw two SRT members running toward
his location from the north,

Sheriif Hounshell chose to remain on foot and did not re-entar the Tac Van. Sheriff
Hounshell said Sergeant Brown started toward the Cooper residence in the Tae Van
while Commander Tafoya and Deputy Charles Brown approached his location on foot,
Sheriff Hounshell waived Commander Tatoya and Deputy Brown past his location.

At that point in the operation, Sheritf Hounshell observed the following;

. Cooper's vehicle nearing his residence

- The UC vehicle following and closest to Cooper's vehicle

- The Tac Van following the UC vehicle

. Commander Tafoya and Deputy Brown following the Tac Van on foat

Sheriff Hounshell procesded south toward the Cooper residence but stopped as he
approached the driveway intersection north of the residence.

Detective Name 1D Ma. f Location Data Supervisor
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Sheriff Hounshell was at the dirt drivewsy intersection a short ime whan he heard gun shots
coming from the area of the Cooper residence. Sheriff Hounshell thought the shots came
from two different caliber weapons. Sheriff Hounshell thought the first shots he heard were

probably fired from a hand gun.

After the shooting, Sheriff Hounshell pracesded to an area near the Cooper rasidence and
met with Commander Tafoya, Shortly after arriving at the residence, Sheriff Haunshell
learned Deputy Marinez had bean shot,

Sheriff Hounshell, assisted by Cormmander Tafoya, began fo initiate incident scens
command. Sheriff Hounshell said medical personnel were requested and they arrived within
minutes to assist Deputy Marinez. A few minutes later, roles reversed and Sheriff Hounshall

assisted Commander Tafoya.

Sheriff Hounshell said someone handed him Deputy Marinez’ rifle. Sheriff Hounshaell noticed
the rifle appeared to be loaded and the safety was in the off pesition. Sheriff Hounshell
maintained custody of Deputy Marinez' rifle until Deputy Marinez was taken from the scene in
the ambulance. Sheriff Hounshell placed the rifle on a abandoned vehicle ar box in Coopear's
front yard and assigned an ACS0O deputy to maintain visual contrel of the rifle.

Sheriff Hounshell confirmed the weapaon belonged to Deputy Marinez. Sherif Hounshell put
the safety in the “on” position and instructed Deputy Wood to secure the rifle in the front seat
of the Tac Van. (Interview Seaction: [11. 13)

Sheriff Hounshell remained at the stene and assisted his deputies as needed before
remaving his personnel from the scene. |t was at that time Sheriff Hounshall formally
requested the DPS/SIU respond and conduct the eriminal investigation.

Sheriff Hounshell said basad on Cooper's alleged prior actions and current intelligence
information, it was clear Cooper would pose a high level threat to his deputies during any
atiempt to take him into custody,

Sergeant Clifford Thorn Intarview Summary

. Involvement - Surveillance Team, heard Commander Womack engage Cooper
in convarsation, heard deputies shout verbal commands at Cooper, heard gun
shots
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Sergeant Thorn and Deputy Eagar assumed their surveillance position.  The surveillance
was conducied from approximately one hundred yards southeast of the front of the Coopers
residence. Sergeant Thomn and Deputy Eagar wera only in position approximately ten
minutes before the arrival of the other SRT members and the beginning of the operation.
The UC vehicle parked on a nearby ridge. That location was not on Cooper's property.

Approximately ten to fifteen minutes after the arrival of the UG vehicle, Sergeant Thorn
observed a light come on within the Coaper residence, Shortiy thereafter, a subject believed
to be Cooper exited the residence and entered 5 pickup truck. Sergeant Thorn observed the
vehicle leave the residence and travel to the location of the UC vehicle. The suspect vehicle
stopped approximately 40 feet behind the UC vehicle.

Sergeant Thom heard two voices engage in a discussion. Sergeant Thorn recognized one of
the voices as that of Commander Wamack . Sergeant Thom was unable to identify the other
voice. Sergeant Thorn could not hear the content of the conversation. After several
moments the conversation stopped. Tha suspect vehicle began to return to the residenca.

Sergeant Thorn advised other officers that the suspect's vehicle was moving. A SAT vehicle
occupied by, Sherff Hounshell, Sergeant Steve Brown, Deputy Chris Qaks and John Poe
approached and attemptad a stop of the suspect vehicle, The SAT van had its emargency
lights in operation.

sergeant Thom saw the suspect vehicle stopped on tha roadway facing west. The SRT
vehicle pulled into a positicn en the lef side of the suspect vehicle facing east.

Sergeant Thorn heard someane gaying, * Sheriff's Office. Sheriff's Office. Get your hands
up. Let me see your hands. Let ma soa your hands. Let me see your hands!”” About 15
seconds later, the suspect vehicle backed up, drove around the SRT vehicle and pracesdead
quickly toward the residence.

The UC and SRT vehicle followed the suspect vehicle to the front of the residence.

The suspect stopped his vehicle in front of the residence. The suspect exited his vehicle and
began moving toward the front door. SRT members exited the UC vehicle and alsa began to

move toward the front door,

The placement of the suspset vehicle and the UC venicle blocked Sergeant Thor's view of
tha front of the residence. Sergeant Thorn was not able to see the specific actions of the
officers or the suspect after they exited their vehicles. His pasition and tha limited light
allowed Sergeant Thorn to intermittently see the movement of officers at the scens.
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Saergeant Thorn heard an undetermined number of shots being fired. He described two
series of gunshots. The first series contained one or two gunshots. That series was quickly
followed by another series of multiple shots. Sergeant Thorn was not able to determine the
number of shots in this second series, He did recalled the first series of shots did have a
different sound than that of the subsequent series.

Sergeant Thorn and Deputy Eagar remained at the surveillance location for approximately 45
minutes, Sergeant Thorn and Deputy Eagar continued to monitor the scene and provide
security for the south side of the ridge.

Deputy Matrese Avila Interview sSummary

s Involvement - UC vehicle, right front passenger, encountered Cooper, heard
deputies shout verbal commands at Cooper, saw Cooper fire a hand gun at
Deputy Marinez followed by Deputy Goldsmith firing his weapon at Cooper

Deputy Avila said they arrived at the top of the hill near Cooper's residence at approximately
midnight. Deputy Avila said Commander Womack unloaded some firewood from the bed of
the pickup truck. Deputy Avila exited the pickup truck and left the passenger door open to
allow Deputy Padilla room ta exit the pickup truck if needed, Deputy Avila said Cooper was
known to have a vicious Rottweiler. Deputy Avila said Deputy Padilla was assignad to
dispatch the dog if became a safety issue.

Deputy Avila said she and Commander Womack ware standing at the front of the pick-up
truck deciding if they were going to start a fire, Deputy Avila said approximately 10 minutes
later, she heard Cooper's pickup truck engine start and observed the headlights tum on.
Deputy Avila moved behind the hood on the passenger side, near the doar, while
Commander Womack moved into a clearing on the drivers side of the pickup truck. Deputy
Avila said Cooper started to drive toward Commander Womack when she thought Cooper
noticed her because he positioned the headlights of the pick-up truck on both of them.

Deputy Avila said Cooper drove up to Commander Womack and started yelling at him fo gat
off the propery. Deputy Avila sajd Commander Womack asked Cooper if the praperty
belonged to Cooper. Cooper told Commander Womack, “Na”, but continued to tell them to
leave the property and that they did not belong there, Deputy Avila said Commander
Womack told Cooper, * We wanted to build 2 fire and talk.” Deputy Avila said Cooper began
to scream at them and ask if he needed 1o "call the cops.” Deputy Avila said Commander
Womack was trying to lure Cooper sut of his vahicle but he never did. Deputy Avila said
Cooper told themn, “I'm going to give yau ten minutes to be off this property or the cops are
going to be here.”
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Deputy Avila said when Cooper started to back up, the SRT vehicle started to drive forward.
Deputy Avila said Commander Wornack yelled for her to get in the vehicle, She got into the
cab of the pickup truck and Deputy Padilla jumped in the bed. Deputy Avila said they were

going to box Cooper's vehicle in, but he was able to maneuver around the SRT vehicle.

Deputy Avila said they followed Cooper to the residence, Deputy Avila said it seemed as if
they were still moving when the SRT officers were jumping out of the pick-up truck after
Cooper. Deputy Aviia said Cooper exited his pickup truek and moved quickly toward the front
door of the residence. Deputy Avila said the deputies yelled at Cooper, "Sheriff's Office,
freeze. Sheriffs Office, stop.” Deputy Avila said as the deputies began to surround Cooper,
Cooper briefly paused and angled himself toward the right, away from the front door.

Deputy Avila said Cooper discharged a pistol very quickly at least three times without saying
a word at Deputy Marinaz. Deputy Avila said she did not see the pistol but could see the
muzzle flash. Deputy Avila said it was so dark, she did not see Deputy Marinez fall down.
Deputy Avila said she did net know how far Deputy Marinez was standing from Cooper at the
time of the shooting but believed Deputy Marinez was standing the closest to Cooper, .

Deputy Avila said about the same time Cooper fired his last round, Deputy Goldsmith began
to return fire as he approached Cooper from the rear. Deputy Avila believad she observed
more than five muzzle flashes come fram Deputy Goldsmith's weapaon, Deputy Avila did not
know who or how many other deputies were in the immediate area at the fime of the shooting
due to the darkness.

Deputy Avila said at the time of the shooting, she was approximately 20 to 25 feet away and
did not have any visual obstructions other than darkness. Deputy Avila said after the
shooting, she heard deputies yelling, "Officer down.” Deputy Avila said after the other
deputies approached Deputy Marinez, she walked over to where Deputy Marinez was lying
on the ground. Deputy Avila said the paramedics were on-scene within approximately thrae
minutes of the shaoting,

Deputy Avila said she was told by Commander Tafoya after the paramadics ware on-scane
that Cooper was "10-7" (out-of-service) and directed her ta nate the time, 0020 hours,
Deputy Avila believed Cooper was lying en his side but did net remember any additional
details because she was focused on Daputy Marinez.
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Deputy Charles Brown Interview Summary

- Involvement - UC vehicle, truck bed, heard Commander Womack engage
Cooper in conversation, heard daputies shout verbal commands at Cooper,
saw muzzie flashes, heard gun shots

Deputy Brown said he attended a briefing at the substation. Deputy Brown said several
scenarios were talked about and drawn on a board, Deputy Brown was assigned to ride in
the bed of an undercover pickup along with three other officers. He and the other three
officers were to be the arrest team, Deputy Brown said there were two undercover officers in
the front of the pickup along with another officer wha was lying on the floorboard.

Deputy Brown said he was assigned to carry a long gun (his issued M4). Deputy Brown said
he was to cover the ather officers as they arrested Cooper when he approached the
undercover pickup.

Deputy Brown said Deputies Goldsmith, Marinez and Commander Tafoya were with him in
the bed of the pickup.

Deputy Brown said they drove to the top of the hill, north of Coaper's property in an attempt
to effect the arrest. Deputy Brown said there were surveillance officers positionad to monitor
Cooper's house and let the arrest team know when Cooper was heading their way. Deputy
Brown said he received the updates from the survaillance officers through his portable radio
and ear microphone.

Deputy Brown said Commander Womack also updated the arrest team. Deputy Brown said
Commander Womack told the team when the lights on Cooper's house came on and whan
a pickup drove away from Cooper's residenca and approached him. Deputy Brown said he
heard Cooper's vehiclo approach.

Deputy Brown said a man's voice (later identified as Gooper) yellad at Commander Womack
from Cooper's pickup. Cooper told Commandar Womack he had no right to be there,
Deputy Brown said Commander Wornack asked Cooper if it was his property and Cooper
said it wasm’t. Deputy Brown said Cooper velled at Commander Womack telling him it was
not his property either, so he neadad to leave. Deputy Brown said the conversation batwean
Cooper and Commander Womack went on for several minutes. Deputy Brown said Cooper
told Commander Womack he had ten minutes io leave or he was going to cail the cops.
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Deputy Brown said the arrest signal was not given and he heard Cogper's pickup begin to
leave. Deputy Brown said either Commander Womack or the surveillance officers natified
the arrest team that Cooper's pickup was returning to the house.

Deputy Brown said Commandar Tafoya radioed for deputies in the SRT truck to intercept
Cooper's pickup and not to allow it o retum to the house. The SRT truck was positioned
down the hill from Cooper's residenes,

After the pickup started to leave, Deputy Brown said he sat up and saw the pickup leaving.
Deputy Brown saw the overhead emergency lights activated on the SRT truck as it came up
the hill toward Cooper's pickup. Deputy Brown said Cooper's pickup stopped as the SRT
ruck drove toward it. Deputy Brown Jumped out of the undercover pickup and ran toward
Cooper's pickup along with Commander Tafoya.

Deputy Brown said the SRT truck and Cooper's pickup stopped very close to each other,
The SRT truck faced north and Cooper's pickup faced south. Deputy Brown heard orders
being yelled ta the driver of the pickup by deputies in the ST truck. Deputy Brown said tha
driver side door of the SRT truck was open.

Deputy Brown said he ran a little to the east to avoid a cross fire situation with the deputies in
the SRT truck.

Deputy Brown said the pickup accelerated and drove around the SRT truck. Deputy Brown
saw Sergeant Brown hanging partially inside the drivers side window of the pickup as jt sped
away. Sergeant Brown fzll from the pickup and Deputy Brown thought Sergeant Brown had
been run over.

Deputy Brown said Caoopers pickup continued toward the residence, so he confinued to
follow it. Deputy Brown said Commander Womack passed him driving the undercover
pickup. Deputy Brown saw twa deputies in the back of the undercover pickup.

Deputy Brown said Cooper's pickup stopped directly in front of the residence. Commander
Womack stopped the undercover pickup behind Cooper's pickup. Deputy Brown sajd he
neard deputies yelling "Sheriff's Office” several times.

Deputy Brown said he saw Cooper running in front of his pickup toward his house and a
deputy running behind him. Deputy Brown said Coopar was not running real fast. As Deputy
Brown approached the undercover pickup he said he saw several muzzle flashes from the
front porch area of Cooper's residence where Cooper had just ran. Deputy Brown did not
know how many muzzles flashes he saw,
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Deputy Brown said he saw several other muzzle flashes and heard a total of approximately
10 shots. Deputy Brown said the shots were fired very close to one another, Deputy Brown
said he was not close enough to see a gun on Cooper's parson,

Deputy Brown said he kapt moving toward the area of the gun shots. Deputy Brown said as
ne arrived in the area of the muzzle flashes, he saw Commander Womack and Deputy
Goldsmith pointing thair gquns toward a subject which was lying on the ground and later
identifisd as Cooper.

Deputy Brown said he looked to the right of Cooper and saw Deputy Marinez lying on his
right side. Deputy Brown said he knelt down in front of Marinez to protect him from any
further gun shots from inside the residence or from Cooper,

attending to Deputy Marinez. Brown said he cut Deputy Marinez' right shirt sleeve so the
emeargency medical technicians (EMT’s) could administer an IV to him.

Crime Scene (96 North Clearview Circle, Eagar, Arizona)

The crime scene was secured by uniformed officers and was delineated by yellow palice
crime scene tape. The crime scene was situated on the top of a hill and included Cooper's
residence. Cooper's residence is daseribed as 2 two story home, facing east.

On November 6, 2001 at approximately 1250 hours, Sergeant Chung and SIU Detectives
Wood, Martinez, Kesling, Bottoms and Allen entered the crime scene at the driveway
junction, north of Cooper's residence. The S1U detectives were accompanied by
Pinetop/Lakeside Crime Scene Investigator Bob Harkey. Investigator Harkey acted as the
crime scene photographer.

Aiter entering the crime scene, Detective Wood walked north to the area where the SRT
vehicle and Cooper's vehicle stopped facing each other. Detective Wood observed sevaral
live rounds of ammunition in the driveway.

From that area, Detective Wood walked south in the driveway toward Cooper's residence.
As Detective Wood neared Cooper's house he ohsenved 5 numbear of vehicles an the
driveway and in Cooper's yard. Detective Woor was met by two uniformed officers from the
5t. Johns Police Department who were maintaining an inner crime scene log.

-
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Detective Wood remained on the driveway and looked west toward Cooper's residence.
Detective Wood saw Ceoper laying on the ground near the front door. Coocper was on his
left side with his head to the west and his feat to the east. Detective Wood saw Cooper's
dog lying on the ground near the north end of the residence. Detactive Wood did not collast
any evidence at the crime scene,

While in the crime scene, near the Cooper residence, Detective Wood met Deputy Apache
County Attorney Michael Roca and Commandar Womack.

Detective Wood, Commandar Womack and Mr. Roca exited the crime scene through the
entry point at 1329 hours.

Alfter completing the crime scene walk through, Detective Wood returned ta the AGSO facility
in Round Valley to complete interviews with Sheriff Hounshell and Cormmandar Tafoya,

On November 6, 2001 at approximately 1620 hours, Detective Wood departed the ACS0O
facility in Round Valley and returned ta the crime scena. Detective Wood enterad the crime
for a second time through the same entry point, at approximately 1636 hours. Detective
Wood walked directly to the area of the inner crime scene.

The scene was wet and muddy because of a recent rain sterm and a light rain was falling as
Detective Wood reached the crime scene. Detective Wood observed miniature Qranges cones
and placards placed in the crime scena by SIU detectives to identify evidentiary items.

Detective Wood was infarmed four weapons and eighteen spent casings were seized during
the crime scene investigation . The seized Weapons and casings were described as follows:
(Supportive Documents: V. 5 and SIU Evidence Recovery Log)

. 1 - Colt, .45 caliber, semi-automatic hand qun, belonging to Deputy Goldsmith
= 1 - Colt, .45 caliber, semi-automatic hand gun, belonging to Deputy Marinaz

- 1 - Caolt, .223 caliber, AR-15A3, assault rifie, belonging to Deputy Marinez

. 1 - Smith and Wesson, .38 caliber, revelver, belonging to Coopear

. & - Spent .45 caliber shell casings found in Cooper’s front yard

. 1 - Spent .223 caliber shell ¢asing found in Cooper's front vard

. 5 - Spent .38 caliber shall casings found in Cooper's hand gun

. 3 - Spent .22 caliber shell casings found in Coopar's front yard

Detective Mamea 10 MNa. Location |I Date Supervisor
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Detective Wood was informed Cooper had a trained attack dog (Rottweiler) on the property.
The Rottweiler was determined to be a threat to the officers and was dizpatched by
Springerville Police Department, Animal Control Officer Dennis Gilliam, after the officer
involved shooting cccurred. Officer Gilliam used a Ruger, .22 caliber, Model 1 0-22 carbine,
to dispatch the Rottweiler, {Investigation: Il. )

While inside the crime scene, Detective Wood received seven rolls of 35mm film from
Investigator Harkey. Detective Wood exited the crime scene, for the last time, at
approximately 1729 hours.

Follow Up Investigation

On Mavember 8, 2001 at approximately 1750 hours, Detestives Wood and Martinez retumed
to the ACSO faeility in Round Valley.

On November 6, 2001 at approximately 1855 hours, Detective Wood took custody of Daputy
Marinez's clothing from Deputy McQuay. Deputy McQuay recovered Deputy Marinez's

Detectives Wood and Martinez departed the ACSD facility in Round Valley at approximately
2030 hours, en route to Phoenix, Arizona.

On MNovember 6, 2001 at approximately 0110 hours, Detective Wood deposited Deputy
Marinez's clothing in locker #34 at the DPS Property and Evidence Section in Phoenix,
Arizona.

On November 7, 2001 at approximately 1000 hours, Detective Wond responded to the DPS
Property and Evidence Section and retrieved Deputy Marinaz's clothing from locker #34.
Detective Wood packaged the evidence into boxes and delivered them to the DPS Evidence
Custodian at approximately 1110 hours, (Supportive Documents: V. 5)

On November 7, 2001 at approximately 1500 hours, Detective Wood delivered the film he
received from Investigator Harkey to the DPS Fhotography Labaoratory in Phogenix, Arizona.

On Nevembear 26, 2001, Detective Wood retrieved a sealed package at the DPS Duty Office.
The package contained supplemental reports from the ACSO and the Springerville Palice
Department. (Investigation: II. 4 and 8)
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On November 27, 2001 at approximately 1430 hours, Sergeant Chung and Detective Wood
visited Deputy Marinez in his hospital room, at BNI. Detective Wood provided Deputy
Marinez with a State of Arizona, Victims Rights Form and informed him he would nat be
interviewed. Deputy Marinez was in stable condition but was undergoing continual tharapy
for his injuries. (Supportive Documents: V. 7)

On December 5, 2001, Detective Woaod raceived DES Supplemental Reports and
Photographic Logs from DPS Detectives Terry Johnson #2479 and Charles Serino Jr. #4731,
Detectives Johnson and Serino attended the autopsy performed on Cooper.

{Investigation: Supplemental Reports, II. 2)

Detective Johnson's supplemental report indicates there were six bullets recoverad by tha
OME personnel, during Cooper's posimortem examination.  The bullets were turned aver lo
Detective Johnson at the end of the pastmortern examination. Datactive Johnson turned
over all evidence received from the OME personnel to the DPS Evidence Custodian, at the
DPS Property and Evidence Section in Tucson, Arizona, (Supportive Documents: V. 5]

On January 10, 2002, Detective Wood received a sealed package from the ACSO.
Contained in the package were copies of the Pima County Medical Examinars {OME)
Autopsy Report on William Milton Cooper, ACSO radio logs, OME fingerprint cards taken
during the William Milton Cooper autopsy and a cassette tape copy of the ACS0O radio
cemmunication on December 4, 2000, (Supportive Documents: V. 12 / V. 13)

On January 18, 2002, Datective Wood reviewed the OME Autopsy Report prepared by Eric
D. Peters, M.D., Forensic Pathologist, and extracted the following information:

William Milton Cooper sufferad nine gun shot wounds;

- Five gunshot wounds to Cooper's torso,

. One gunshot wound to Cooper's head.

- One gunshot wound to Cocpers right lower extremity.
. Two gunshot wounds to Cooper's right upper extremity,

The death of William Milton Cooper was due 1o gunshot wounds to the torse with
perforations of the heart. A gunshot wound to the head with skull fracture is

contributory.

The manner of death is certified as a homicide,
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On March 21, 2002, Detective Wood received a Scientific Examination Report from DPS
Supervising Criminalist Bill Morris, (Supportive Documents; V. 14) A review of Crirminalist
Merris’s report revealed the following:

ltem JB1 - (1) Colt Model 191141, Pistal, seized from ACSO Deputy Joseph
Goldsmith, fired evidence iterns RK10-18 (fired Federal 45 Auio cartridge
cases), 14JTJ1-6 (firad bullets) and RK23 (fired copper jacketed bullet),

ltern BKS - (1) Colt AR15A3, Carbine, seized from ACS0 Deputy Rob Marinez
exhibits similar class characteristics to, and was identified as having made the
extractor mark found on evidance iterm RKG (fired Federal .223 Remington
cartridge case). Item RKS's lack of individual characteristics precludes a
specific identification or exclusion of its having firad in ltem RKE.

ltems JB1 (.45 Colt Auta pistol), RK25 (.45 Colt Auto pistol) and RKS (Colt
AR15A3 carbine) were all test fired and all functioned norm ally and safely.
ltems JA2 (metal fragment) and RK5 (lead bullet core fragment) are consistant
with being fragments of lead bullet cores. Their caliber could not be

determined.

This ends the DPS/SIU investigation to date, April 4, 2002.

Note: Refer to supplemental reports for specific details of investigative efforts

assignad to detectives/officars.
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